McCrLURE & EGGLESTON, L.L.C.
A Limited Liability Company
Attorneys at Law
15 WasnmnoTon, SUITE 106

Perer M, EGoLEsTON 1401 17TH STREET, SUITE 660 MoNTE Vista, CoLORADG 81144
Joun C. McCrLure DE:NVER—; CoLORADO 80202-1244 Préase Dauer Ay ;::n. w0 tHx DNVER ADBRESS
———— TEeLEPHONE: (303) 294-0822 FacsmaLe: (303) 294-0824 TELEPHONE: (719) 852-5609

Rusy M. WaiTELEY, Pagartcar

Direct Dial No.: (303) 953-5805

February 28, 2013

Ms. Loretta E. Pineda

Division Director

Department of Natural Resources

Division of Reclamation, Mining and Safety
1313 Sherman Street, Suite 215

Denver, CO 80203

RE:  Costilla County / BMRI - storage of poor quality waters
Dear Ms, Pineda:

As a follow-up to Costilla County’s letter to you of February 26, 2013, we attached a
memo of even date which referred to certain exhibits,

We would like to supplement the memo by one additional exhibit: On page 4 {second
full paragraph) of the memo, it refers that Mr, Scott Mefford, Costilla County’s engineering
consultant, having concluded that a substantial release of poor quality waters from the lined
tailings facility would reach the aquifer underlying the Salazar Ranch. In support of that
statement, and related statements which deals with BMRI’s water management practices, and the
prior and current use of the lined tailings facility, we are attaching Mr. Mefford’s trial testimony
in Case No. 2007CW42 (pp.1-12, 33-94). ' '

Thank you.

TN

John C. McClure, on behalf of
Costilla County Conservancy District
And the Board of County
Commissioners of Costilla County

/5 Ed Lobato

Edwin J. Lobato, on behalf of

The Board of County Commissioners of
Costilla County, the Montez Ditch, S8an
Luis Peoples Ditch, Acequia Chiquita
Ditch, and the Espinosa Ditch

JCM:aa
Enclosure
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DISTRICT COURYT
WATER DIVISICN 3
STATE OF COLORADO

702 Fourth Street
Alamosa, CO 81101

IN THE MATTER OF THE
APPLICATION FOR WATER
RIGHTS OF BATTLE
MOUNTAIN RESOURCES,
INC., IN COSTILLA COUNTY

For the Petitioner:
JAMES 5. WITWER, #19482
ANDREA ASEFF, #42571
KRISTIN BAILEY, #44868

For the Board of Cty
Cmmr*s of Costilla
County & Costilla Cty
Conservancy District:
JOBN C. MCCLURE, #2896

For the Board cof Cty
Commr's & Montez,
Espinosa, Acequia
Chiguita, & San Luis
People's Ditches:
Edwin J. Lobato, #4699

“COURT USE ONLY"

Case No. 2007CwW42

REPORTER'S TRANSCRIPT
{Excerpt of Proceedings)

The trial in this matter continued on
before the HONORABLE

Wednesday, December 12, 2012,
PATTIE P. SWIFT, Water Judge within and for the

12th Judicial District, State of Colorado.
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C INDEJX

WITNESSES

fOR THE OBJECTORS:

SCOTT MEFFQORD "

DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. MCCLURE
VGIR DIRE EXAMINATIONM BY MR. WITWER
DIRECT EXAM CONT'D BY MR. MCCLURE
DIRECT EXAM CONT'D BY MR. MCCLURE
CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR, WITWER
REDIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. MCCLURE
RECROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. WITWER
FURTHER EXAMINATION BY MR. MCCLURE

EXHIEBITS .
ITEM DESCRIPTION
FOR THE OBJECTORS:
CC~E Cease and Desist Order
cCc-F Discharge Permit
CC-1I. Aerial Photo of Wells Down
Gradient of Battle Mountain
' Resocurces Tailing Pond
cC-T : 1/25/%0 Transcript
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SCOTT MEFFORD

called as a witness on behalf of the Obijectors,
having been first duly sworn testified as follows:

DIRLECT EXAMINATICN

BY MR. MCCLURE:

e Would you state vour name, pleaée.

A Scott Gibson Mefford.

Q - And your éddress, sir.

A My business address is 12975 West 24th

Place in Golden, Célorado.
| Q And what business are you in, sir -~
involved in, sir?

A I am president of Hydrokinetics, which is
a water enginesring and scieﬁtific firm.

¢ And how long have you been involved in
that line of work?

A I began working in the waterxr field
immediately upon graduation from colleQe in 1972,
and I ha%e worked in the field of hydroiogy,
geology, and related fields ever since.

o) Where did you graduate from, sir?

A I have é degree in geophysical
engineering from the Colorado School of Mines.

Q WhatAcertifications dq you hold?

A I am a certified professional geologist.
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'I'm a registered professional geologist in the

of Professienal Geoloqists.

‘history, =zir.

state of Wyoming. Wyoming has a registration law
for geoldgists as well. Colorade doesn't
specifically have a registration law, but

generally relies upon the AIPG, American Institute

Q Do you belleve vou have any expertlse in
the area of groundwater hydrology?

A " Yes. Ags I indicated, I have both
academic experience and praétical experience or
work experience in that field. Beyond my academic
experience in geophysical éngineering at the
School of Mines, I also graduated from the United
States Armyxofficer Engineer Scheool aft Fort
Bélvoir, Virginia, aﬁd returned and completeﬁ
graduate work at the Colofado School of Mineés --
did not'get my master's Because I haven't
completed or didn't complete'the thesis. I got a
job offer and di&ﬁ't get that done,

0 Can yeou briefly describe your work

A - In 1973, '72 or '73, I went to'work'for
the firm 6f Willard Owens Associates, which was a
groundwater engineering firm based .in Wheat Ridge,

Colorado. I werked for that firm until I toock off
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.concerns, water guality analysis, for water rights

geologic mapping.

and stérted my own firm in 1983. That'é the firm
of Hydrokinetics Incorporated, and I've been |
work;ng for tha£ firm,‘Hydrokinetics, ever since.

Q What experience do vyou haﬁe in
groundwater hydrology?

A The primary focus of ny practibe both at
Willard Owens Associates and at Hydrokinetics has
been exactly iﬁ the field of groundwater hydroleogy
and related-topics.

Q Can you give ﬁs a general background as
to the type of cases you'vwve beer involved in
involving groundwater hydrology over the vears.

A We -- I héﬁe.done.—u conducted a variety
of different kinds of studies for purposes of

develbpment 0f water supplies, for water-Quality

purposes. We've done a considerable amount of
municipal water supply development work, including
construction of wells, design and engineering of

well systems, groundwater modeling issues,

We do a considerable amount -of work for
special districts, in particular, municipalities
and special districts in regards to development of

their water rights, development‘fw physically,
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geologic systems and to understand -~ first, to

different water guality projects. I've worked for

Texaco International on spills related to gasocline

development of their water supplies.
o} " And do you apply your background in
geology to any of those hydrologic studies?

A Yes. Certainly aguifer systems are

understand an aquifér'system, itts first:important
to understand the geology.

0 ' fcu indicated yecu had experieﬁce in water
quality. 'Could you tell us what type of |

experience you've had.

A We have done -- I have done a variety of

where we have inveétigatad.the extent of the
spill, developed contaminate andrcleanup brocesses
and implemented those processes.

I have worked for East Cherry Creek
Valley Water and Sanitation District on various
water quality issues, iﬁcluding implications of
the Lowry Superfund Site and contaminate migration
from that superfund site on to the district. I've
also been appointed by the governor as a membgr of
the Lowry Superfuﬁd monitoring committee, which
was a committee that.was.established to éllow

public input to the supérfund pfocessu
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Let's see, thére’s a lot ©f others that
we work on that had water qﬁality implications.
I've worked with Cherokee Water and Sanitation
Disﬁrict out of Colorado Springs on a water
project wherelthey have to monitor groundwater
downgradienﬁ of seepage ponds that are associated
with their sewage disposal facilities.

I've worked on a host of petrﬁleum
cleanup projects for Montgomery Ward -~ "host,"
I'1l say, six of them -- Qhere, when Montgoumery
Wérd ciosed-down soﬁe years ago,‘they ha& gaéqline
leaks that needed cieaned up. I've done work at
Gill Stapleton Airpcrt.in a>similar regard,
groundwater cleanup. .

o) What about -- have yéﬁ'been involved in
water management issues? |

A "Yes, uh-huh.

0  And could you tell me your experience in
water management.

a ‘A‘greét deal of the work that-we‘do for
municipaiities is‘really a management précess. We
work with them ffom‘the-very staft to develop:

water rights through the implementation of those

. water rights,aﬁd then getting the water into the

pipeline.
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- watex goés.

system that we constructed, and it's important to

‘keep track of the quantities.of water that-we pump

56, for example, East Cherry‘Creek Valiey
Wéter and Sanitation District, which is one of our
1ar§er clients, we have put together some of the
initial water rights packages. To the degree that
there were aug plans associated with some of
those, he have either developed or assisted in the
development of the administration programs for
those; the accounting‘ﬁackages for those, which
regquire that you track the water through the

system; and then physically watching where the

In that particular‘case, water comes into
Barr Lake, vérious manipulations occur in Barr
Lake. There's an accounting balance associated
with Barr Lake that has to be kept track of .
Water is taken out of Barr Lake. Some. of it goe§
into the alluvial aquiferAsystem.‘ Water is pumped

from the alluvial aquifer system through a well

from that well system.

In addition to that, there's a recharge
facility that we constructed; and it's necessary
to very specifically account for and track the

water that goes into that recharge facility and
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how thét gets back into thé system.

It's important that it's tracked both for
legal reasons, for compliancé with the
augmentation plan; buﬁ it's also important that
it's tracked‘physically so that we can make suré
that the wells -- that the water is not just paper
water but it'srzeally going to'result in
production.

@  Is water balance calculations part of
groundvwater management considerations?

A Yes.

Q ‘And you’verbéen involved 1n water balance
calculations in the past, anélyses?

A Yes.

Q‘ Aléo, do you have any expertise in ground
and surface water matters in general?

A fesy We talked about, I think,
groundwater issues to some considerable degree.
We deal routinely with issﬁes of surface water,
groundwater interaction. We don't do as much
strictly surface water diversion kinds of work,
but where there is aﬁ'interaction bétween surface
waters and grdundwaters, we work on many proijects
like that.

o Were vou gualified as an expert witness
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~in Division 37

in one of the prior cases, 89 CW 322

A Yes,

Q And did you testify in that case?

A Yes. |

Q Okay. You testified for the cppeoesers Dos

Hermano§ Ranches. in that case?

A That's correct.

0 You've been qualified ~- have you been
gualified to teétify in court as ag expert

witness, aside from that occasion?

A Yes.

c - And on how many different occasions?

A A lot. I'm trying to remember; I don't
know as I could tell you.exactly how many. In

excess of a dozen though, I'm sure.

Q Have you been involved in water matters

A Yes.

0 | Were you involved in_trials in Division 3
onrother_matters?

A Yes.

Q . Were you qgualified as an expert witness
in those caseé?

A -Yés.

Q Have you done work in the San Luis Valley




00:11:57

.90:12:00
QG:12:C0
00:i2:03
00:12:07
00:12:12
0G:312:16

00:12:18

O0:12:21

00:12:23
00;12:26
00:12:28
00;12:29
QG:12:33
00:12:37
00:22:339

00:12:41

00:12:45

- 00:12:49
00:12:52
00:12:57
S 00:12:59
00:13:02

00:13:07

00:13:10-

10

ii

12

13

14

15

16

17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

25

11

‘work you'wve done in the San Luis Valley.

'transfer of wells. We did some work downh in the

-golf course, well construction for water supplies

for their golf course.

aside from this case then, I assume?
A Yes.

- Q Could you briefly describe what type of
A We have worked on moving wells, the

town of Sanford -- I believe it was for the.school

district down there -- where they had_acquired a

well, and it was located on a ranch, and it needed

to ‘be moved to a néw 1ocati§n consistent with the

rulés andkregulaﬁions. | |
- We've actually worked for the town of

Alamosa in looking at water supplies for their

We have worked-§n two different cases
agsociated with" the deveiopmént of the groundwatér
district in the Closed Basin. We actually worked
for tﬁe senior rights on the Rio Grénde and
Conejos. Rivers in that aspeét. That was a case
that-had a great deal to do with the interaction
between the:surface watér in the Rio Grande and
the.Conejos and the groundwater systgms;
especially the groundwa£er.s§stems in the Closed

Basin area.
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Q So éhead, I'm soxry.

‘A Cther projects we worked on -- we've done
groundwater modeling some consideréble number of
years ago at the San Luis Lakes facility. It's
managed by BLM. That work was done for the

federal government.

Q That's fine. You mentioned you worked on
tﬁe "~'this firsg case on 8% (CW 32. What about
the second case, 99 CW 572

A As T recall, that didn't go to trial; but
we did work with pretty much the same group or at
least_with the county and the conservancY—distric;
in evaluating that decree. 7

QR. MCCLURE: 'Okag. We would offér
Mr. Mefford és an expert witness in groundwater.
hydrology, geology, water guality, water |
management, and‘ground and surface water
interaction;

THE COURT: Thank you, Mzxr. McClure.
Mr. Witwer,.any objection? |

ME. WITWER: May I voir dire, Your Hﬁnor?

THE COURT: You may.

VOIR DIRE EXAMINATION

BY MR. WITWER:

'@ Mr. Mefford, you're not a registered




bl:

0l:

01

gl:
0l:
O1:

O1:

G1

01

0i:

al

a1:

b1:

01

0l:

0l

01:
01:
01
01
01
0L:

01

01

ol

01:
0l
(01
01:
o1
0i:
Cl:
:dl:

01

01

:0L:
01:
01:
10z
02:

:02:

02

02:

02:

02:

¢z

02

02:

;02

02

04

a7

14

2q

29

33

35

39

;46
49

32

56

01

03

05

1G9

1z

i5

1B

120
122
24

127

30

10

11

iz

13

i4

15

16
17
18
19

20

21

22
23
24

25

33

structures.,

o] {By Mr. McClure) Mr. Mefford, let me ask
you, c¢oncerning the issue that was addressed and
your ;nvestigatién 0f the Lined Tailings Facility
a5 a reservolr and.ability to store waters as is
being contemplated as paﬁt of this action, could
you address.those, please.

A If % uﬁderstand what you're asking me, .
yes, we're loocking at it as a reservoir; and, in
the work that I do, we deal with reservoir issues
on a féirly routine basis. |

For example, right now we're doing an
analysis of leakage beneath Barr Lake, which is a
big reservoirx uﬁ bf Brighton; and we're making
determinations of the water balance in that
resefvcir, how much éomes in, how much comes‘ouﬁ{
and how muchris leaking out and seeﬁinqwout.
We‘re'doing drilling, and we're doing groundwater
modeling and so-od to make that evaluation.  So,
certaiﬂly,.we deal with those kinds of aspects

with regazxd to more traditional storage

And what I'm indicating here to you is
that this is not what we would envision as . a
ﬁraditional storage structure, traditional

reservoir.
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‘overrule that objection. I'm going to let that’
testimony stand. You may proceed, Mr. McClure.
0 {By Mrx. McClure) From a water management

"Facility could be used for storage of waters?

the Mined lLand Reclamation Board, or. DRMS as it's

MR. WITWER: I raise the same objection

and move toc strike.

THE COURT: Okay. I'm actually going to

standpeint and as a vessel to store water.as a
reservoir; have you conducted any analysis? |

A Wé have requested, through the discovery
process, information thét would be usable in
defining water balance, defining how those —-- how
the thinés like the storage curve and how an
understanding.of the watér that's stored iﬁ the
reservoir, the elevation of the water and so on}
may imﬁact things; but we have been unablexﬁo
secﬁre that information through the discovery
?rocess.‘

Q Did you conduct any histerical analysis,
by looking at any documents, determining-u— to

determine whether or not thils Lined Tailings

A We looked at some construction documents,

to the degree that they were available, through

now called.
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A We did. In particular, we lccked at the
"transcript of a BMG hearing —-- I think it's in
1999 -~ in which representatives of the

from January 29, 1990. 1Is that the document

design engineers, as to their testimony inh regard

] Did you look at any transcripts of

hearings?

engineering firm working for Battle Mountain Gold-
on the design of the system testified.

Q You attached a transcript to your report

you're referring to as the '99 document or
something else?

A Yes, that's correct. ‘

Q. Januéry 25, 19%90. And did vyou
inveéﬁigate concerning the testimony that was
given in that proceeéihg concerning use of the
Lined'failings Facility for storage of waters?

A I had interest in the copinions of the

to whether or not the facility was designed to
store-water. Certainly they are the design
engineers. ' They are the ones that should have the
expertisé and the understanding of how that
particular facility is bést suited to or not to

store waterxr.

¢ . And are these the design engineers that
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material to the use of that facility for storing

‘particular, was ~-- I will have to paraphrase it

store tailingé.not to store water, not to store

were con#ultants to Battlé Mountain Resources,
Inc., from SRK Engineering?

A That's correct, ves.

o and that was a Mr. Dorey? Rob Dorey, I

believe, is the name.

A Yes.
Q and Ms. Anne Baldrige?

A Yes, I believe she also testified in

4

that hearing.

Qo In your report, you referred to testimony

of those two pexrsons and how that might be

liquids. Are you aware of that?

A Yes.

0 An& what do you think was relevant
concerning their testimony conéerning the ability
to contain‘liquids? |

A The testimony of Mr. Dorey, in

just a little bit because I den't have it right
here in front of me, but it was fairly explicit

indicating that this facility was designed to

fluids.

MR. WITWER: I'm going to object to the
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introduced.

extent that the testimony cf this witness
misstates information that'sKaiready contained in
a 200-page exhibit that's in evidence,

| MR. MCCLURE: I don't know if it is in
evidence; but we wogld introduce it aﬁ this point

in time, Your Honor. I didn't think it had been

THE COURT: All right. - Well, actually,
it‘hasn’t.bean admitted. |

MR. MCCLURE: That is tab 20, Exhibit_?; 
and we would offer into evidence the transcript of
the January 25, 18990, hearing for MLRB.

| THE COURT: All fight. Mr. Witwer, any

ébjecticn? |

MR. WITWER: -May I have a moment,
Your Honor? |

THE CQURT:  You certainly may.

{Thére was a bfief pause in the
prbceédings.}

MR. WITWER: Can we just go GFf the
recozxrd? |

THE COURT: The questionrbefore me 1is to
admit. Andf-if you want t¢ go off the record,
thaf’s fine with the Court too. |

(There was a brief pause in the
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‘stricken, we have no objection.

proceedings.) _

THE COURT: Back on the record. Go
ahead, Mr. Witﬁer.

MR. WITWER: Thank you. Your Honor,
subject to our continuing urging of the Court to
take any documents thatrare reiated to water
management on the failings -~ it is not an issue
that the applicant believes i§ relevant in this
cése whatsoever -- make them only conditionally
relevant subject to the connecting up of proof of
likelihood that water management will contaminate
the replacement sources, replacement water
available under the Salazar Ranch water rights;
and subject to that urging of the Court to admit

it as oenly conditionally relevant later to be

THE-COﬁRT: Thank you, Mr. Witwer; and I
do admit it. And I agree witﬁ Mx.~Wi£wer on that;
that it islﬁependent on the condition that . the
relevancy be established; but I will admit it on
that condition.

MR. MCCLURE: Thank you,. Your Honor.

(Objectors' Exhibit CC-T, 1/25/90
Txanééript, was received into evidence.)

Q (By Mr. McClure) Going te your report
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‘storage vessel, when it wasn't intended by the

‘concern to me.

itseif, I believe the queétion had been dsked ydu
about Mr. Dorey's testimoﬁy concerning that the
facilit? is designed to c¢ontain solids and ﬁot to
contain. liquids. Is that relevant for vour

purposes of an analysis?

A Yes.
o And why do you say that?
A If it is being now used as a water

desigﬁ engineers to be utilized as a water storage

vessel, that would seem to be of considerable

MR. WITWER: Your Honor, I'm going to
object and move to s£rike. That's not a
professicnal opipién. That's somethiﬁg thét
anybody coﬁld say based on'théir intérprefatibn of
what two people said 22‘years agoe who actually
knew something about desigﬁ of tailings
impoﬁh&ments, but that's not é préfessional
opinibp.

THE COURT: I'm just going to let you
crOSS*exaﬁine him and make these thian clear to
me, Mr. Witwer. So I'm going to overrule that -~
obiection. You may proceed, Mr. McClure.

o] {By Mr. McClure) You also had a quoﬁe




©0l:

Cl:

01:

01z

Ol:

01:

Cl;

01:

01:

. Q1

0l:

01

Qi:
0l:
Qi:

0L

01

0%:
0l:
01:
01:

01:

01

01:

11

11:
12:

12:

12

12
i2:
112
i2:

12:

12

132:

12

1z:
12:
12:
11Z2:
12:
13:

13:

13:

:13

13

:51

55

0z

05

;08

=08

13

17

122

28

31

134

37

141

43

415

49

85

59

0%

08

:15
i8 .
20

122

10
11
12
13
14
i5
16

17

18
19 |

20

21
22
23
24

25

40

from the mill to the tailings facility and pumping

Baldrige's testimony there is the fact that watecr

then, after it's decanted, is not designed to be

from Anne Baldrige of SRK Engineering,“and that

referred to the pump-back system taking slurry

back waters. Do you recall that guote?
A Yes.
] Okay. Could you explain why you believe

that is relevant for purpeoses of your analysis.

A Well, as the design engineers explained
in that testimony, the water is being -- is
carrving the tailings to the pond. It's the

transport mechanism, and so water ends up in the
pond as part of the tailings. And the.purpose of
:he tailings pcnd.is toe decant the water. and |
distribute the tailingé at the location that
they're designed ﬁo be located.

I think that was the testimony in that

case or in that hearing, but the important part of

stored or dissipated theré.‘ It's desigﬁéd to be
pumped back and reused at thé mine facility.

So it operates‘in a cycle. The water
that brings the tailings over,\deposif; the
tailings. Thaﬁ water is picked up, pumped back up

to the mill facility, and goes through the loop
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,you recall that?

but that pond is -- alsoc there's some evaporation

"off of it. I*m not sure I understand the

again. So the water is cirdulated,_but the water
is not designed to be stored in any large
gquantities or dissipated in any large degree at
that point. |

o] I believe that area of testimony that you
quoted from Anne Baldrige referred to a free water

pocl ¢n top of the Lined Tailings Facility. Do

A Yes.

Q Ckay. Does that have any significance td
you in terms of yoﬁr aha;ysis, particularly f4
well, during the mining phase and also post
mining? |

a - That pond is part of the decant procéss,

guestion.

o]  Well, during the'mining phaée, there was
a pond on tﬁe.top of the Lined Taiiings Facility?

A Yes.

O And I'm asking yoﬁ abouﬁ that. Is that
what yvour understanding was?-

A | Yeé, my understahding, that existed.

Q iS‘thgre any significaﬂﬁe,_inrterms of

yvour analysis, to having a pond bn the Lined
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to restore it to natural conditions by adding such

to reestablish it under natural conditions.

Tailings Facility.after the mining phase has
ceased? |

a - Well; as_I read the reclamation plan, the
idea ultimately was tc close those facilities;‘to

dry out the LTF, the Lined Tailings Facility; and
conditional topsoil and regrading as was necessary

Q Do you have an opinion as to the use of
that Lined Tailings Facility as is now proposed in
ﬁhié plan of augmentation for water storage
purposes?

A It's my opinion that it wasn't designed
for ﬁhat purﬁose;-and lacking any more information.
or lacking.a structural engineer's evaluation of
the use of that fadility fof’that purpose, I think
that there is séme risk in using it for storage.

It's my understanding that ﬁhere's not
been a structural enéineer or geotechnical
enginéer that‘s'done'any work to determine whether
or not water éan be stored safely'infthat'
facility, especially an undisclosed oz
undetermined quantity of water,‘because we have no
understanding of how much water -- what the

maximum quantity of water might be that would be

“
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engineser.

~facility as a reservoir, this is a man-made

intended to be ztored in there.

There are no limits in thé decree, as far
as I can reéd it, as to the guantities of water
that can be stored in there. So I think there are
considerable safety issues, and it hésn't been

looked at by a structural or geotechnical

lMR. WITWER: I'm going to object,
Your Honor, for ﬁhé record for the same purpose,
considerable safety issues that relies on
expertise this witness does not possess.

THE COURT: Your cbjection is noted,
Mr. Witwer. rThank you. You may proceed,
Mr. McClure. | | ‘

MR. WITWER: To'clarify, are yoﬁ

overruling my objection?

THE COURT: I'm overruling ybur
objection. Sorry.
Q _{By Mr. McClure) 1In analyzing this

résérvoix?

A It's a man-made facility.

Q And there is a liner underneath 1t and
then an uﬁder drain system?

A That's my understanding, ves.
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Q Would the ability té store waters in the
future, after mining ceaséd; be related to the
intégrity of the liner?

MR. WITWER: Objection, Your Honor, same
objection. |
THE.COUBT:- Overruled.

A Well, 1if the liner leaked, cerﬁainly thaf
causes some problemns both with the ability of the
vessel to store ﬁater and with the release of
contaminates 1f that were the case.

o {By Mr. McClure) And, once again, that
can be, if yvou had enough informatiﬁn, something
that pessibly could be determined through a wéter
bPalance caliculation, with tﬁe‘necessary
information?_ |

A Certainiyf ifrtﬂere wefe enough‘ieégage
out of there that wés recognizabie, that could
very well be in a water balénce calculationl

Q Let me g§ to Opinion No. é on the West
Pit water quaiity on page 7 of your répdrt. Did
you give an opinion aboﬁt the water gquality in the
West Pit is not of-adeﬁuate quéiity to discharge
intp the Rito Secof'

A I did.

Q And what -- this was in August of =--
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20th, 2012, vou conducted some sort of an analysis

'c0ncerning that. Could you briefly describe what

analysis you conducted.

A  We, actually, looked at tﬁe_work that the
health department had'dcﬁé 5ack when the original
leak from éhe Wesﬁ Pit was found to bé‘reaching
the Rito éeco. I believe, at that time, the
health department determined that there were
potential issues with a number of parameters. As
I récall, at least'suifates, manganese, toltal
dissolved solids, I believe, were discussed; and
the health department at that time concluded that
the release would not be acceptable and not meet
stream‘standards. |

Since éhat time, there‘has been and there
continues to be monitoring; and the discharge
permit continues to be in place such that waters
ére not allowed to be released to the stream
without ﬁxeatmentf -So that indicates tc me that
the conditioﬁ that the gioundwaters don't meet
stream standards continues to exist. |

Q Can you please indicate what analysis you
did concerning a review of information as to¢ the
piercing of the green clay layer during fhé mining

period and how that has affected water guality.




01:

01:

01

01:
01i:

Ol:

01

Q1:

0l:

- 01:

01:

01
c1

01

01:

Gi:

01

‘01:
0L:
;Ol%
0l
Ol

al:

:21:08

21:13

21:18

121521

21:24

21:30

21:32

:21:37

21:40

21:44

21:47

21:5C

:21:54
:21:57
122:04

:22:08

22:15

22115

:22:1¢%

22:23
22:26

22:37

10

11

iz

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21
22
23
24

25

46

of the green clay layer from reaching the Rito

A There is considerable discussioﬁ of the
geology of the West Pit and the significance of
the green c¢lay layer to the géoldgy and the
hydrogeology of the Wesit Pit that can be found in
TR-15. TR-15 was developed after this leak was
identified.'

There was a green clay layer. It was one
type of layer.. Actually, it's a gouge material,
which is a material that is created by the
movemént of rocks along the fauit; and 1it's,
essentially, & clay barrier to flow. And,
histeorically, this is an almost vertiqal barrier.
So when we say "layer," it's not just a flat
layer, but it‘s.at an‘angle. That barrier to flow

prevented large guantities of water from the north

Seco.

During the mining operation, that‘clay
layer was breached. fhat gouge layer was breached
such that Qaters.from.the north,‘whiéh were of
poor quaiitf, were able to reach the West ?iﬁ And
flood the West Pit and.fhen interaect with the
chemistry of the fock material thaf was refilled
into the West Pit and create water quality

conditions which were inappropriate to put into
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.that fill material that creates a water quality.

‘that didn'tt occur under natural conditions.

an elevation in the alluvium that is below the

the stream.

Q And dust kind of in a time reference,
after mining, the West Pit was fillea in witﬁ some
fill material. Is that what you're referring ﬁo
as the interaction? \

A Yes.

e, Sc it's the interactionlof the water withi

issue?

A Yes. And the breaching of the green
clay, in pgrt, creates the head conditions within
the West Pit that caused the prcblem_ﬁith the

water level rise and release into the Rito Seco

Q . And the pumping of the West Pit wells,
wells that have been referred to as the West Pit
wellsr the four wells, for remediation purposes,
do you have a view as to whether or not that:helps

cure that problem?

A It does. It maintains the water level at

point at which it can be released into the Rito
Sece, and it also keeps the water level in the
tailings -- neot tailings, in the rock that was

used as backfill in the West Pit below a level
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the West Pit actually helps maintain water

over into the Rito Seco?

that causes water guality problems through

geochemical interaction.

e} " S50 the maintenance of a certain lewvel in

quality?
A Yes.
Q But I think you also said it reverses the

hydraulie gradient or words to that effect.

A - Yes.

Q And that's to create waters from spilling

4 Yes.

Q And those West Pit waters that are
discharged to the Water Treatment Faciiity, from
your investigat@on, is that aCcomplisBing a |
purpose that's desired as to‘the use of the Water

Treatment Facility?

- A Yes. I mean,‘the Water ?reatment
Faclility serves a specific purpose in resolving
the water guality issués, ves .

Q From your observations or knowledge, it
functions éppropriately?

A Yes. |

Q Is this an ongoing situatibn'concerning

waters emanating up and. into the West itz
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A Yes.
Q And why do you say that?
A Well, the geology has been permanently

altered with the breaching of the green clay and

the backfilling of the West Pit with the rock,

wagste rock.

G When yvou talk about breaching the green
clay layer, is that breaching a confining layer,

A Essentially that's it, yes.

g | Ckay. Would vou explain té ﬁhe Court
what Lhat means in terms of a confining lavyezr?

A Well, a confining layer is a layer that
can create an artesian head énd cén allow waters
to ——.can confine water such that if it 1is
Breachéd, the water level can rise above the
confining layer.

An example down here Qould be the blue

clay sedquence. e know that as we penetrate the

blue clay sequence in the Closed Basin, we get

flowing wélls. And those flowing wells are

operating because of an artesian head, and that

‘artesian head is generated because we have

recharge to the blue clay at a higher elevation

than a particular flowing. well. And we have this

confining clay that holds the pressure in until
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" That was a different proposéd decree at that time

" which the Court in Case Nos. .89 CW 32 or 9% CW 57,

it's breached with the well.
Same kind of situation with the confining
layer in the greeﬁ clay. The geometries are just
a little bit different because its not a flat
layer in the same sense that the blue clay lafer
is, but it functions in somewhat of that manner.
Q if I can go fo your opinion at page 4,

paragraph 4.  You quoted the proposed decree.

in 2pril of 2012, but you guoted the language at
page 22, paragraph D that indicates -- let me just
read it into the record:

"There was no evidence presented from

or this Cdurt, cduld conclude that Battle
Mountaln's operations have contaminated or will_
contaminate anyone's water supply or impair
anyone's water rights by degrading water guality.
In fact, the evidence was just to the contrary."
You then rendered an opinion that you
felt that incorporation of this language in the
curient decree is misleading in a nunber of water
gquality and éoh;amihation issues that have arisén.
Could you téll me wﬁat sort of analysis you |

conducted oﬁ that.
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"and I wasn't sure 1if this was still in there. So

if it's not in there, it's not in there.

MRE. WITWER: I'm geing to object on
grounds of relevance. The decree language has
been changed since then. |

| THE COURT: This isn't in the current
propoged decree?

MR. WITWER: Ne, it.-is not, Your EHonor.

THE COURT: Tﬁénll sustain. I don't see
how it's relevant if it's not in phere.

MR. MCCLURE: Hoﬁéstly, Yﬁur'ﬁonor,

there's been a number of proposed decrees lately;

Q @ {By Mr. McClure) Let me ask you fhis:
Do you have - have you done any investigation
conéerning whetﬁer or not the quality of waters
delivered to the downstream rights is an area of
céncern to the downstredm water users?

A Well, certainly that's‘an integrai part
of this decree, that the guality ot watefs
deliﬁéred are.-- remain suitaﬁ;e for the historic
uses of seﬁiors downstream.

Q And what aze the concerns in terms of
your investigation?

A Well, certainly the main#enan;e of the

facility, the treatment facility, such that
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released into the Rito Seco is a concern. This

issue; but were that treatment plant done away

coentaminated waters are not again allowed to be
decree would, hopefully, continue to resoclve that_

with and water levels allowed to recocver, based on
the infbrmation, fhe water guality information
that's afailabie-today, that would degrade thé
water qualit§ for downstream seniors. |

| In addition, there are concerns, as we've
discussed, with'potentiai releases from the Lingd
Tailings Facility should such releases occur.

Q In ycur report, you refer te the réporte&
cyanide spill in 1992 by Battle Mountain. What
wa$ yoﬁr knowledge concerning that incident?

A I don't recall all of the detalls. As I
remember, there was a spiil or release of some
cyanide-containing materials at some point in the
vicinity of the mill, and the health department
s&mehow identified that; and, uwltimately, & fine
was issued, significant.fine. I think, as you
indicated, I think it was the largest fine that
the MLRB peopie‘héd issued te that point. I don'£
recall all of the details of it, but certainly
theré was a releaserthat was out of compliance.

", And were you aware of the spill that
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"want to take a look.

cccurred in-that late '90s tTime frame that vou
generally referred to in your prior testimony, but
where contaminated water actually reached the Rito
Seéc out of;the West Pit? |

A rYes.

0 As part of your iavestigaticen, did you
determine 1f a cease and desist order had been
issued by Colorado Department of Health and
Environment?

‘A "I believe it was, ves,

Q Oka&., And vyou referred to thaﬁ'as
appendix 4 in yourlreport?

A - I think that's correct.

Q And was there also a ~-- go ahead 1f you

A I don't know the appendices. -Yes, I do
have it here. \ o

0 ‘And then that also calls for-the
requirement of a CDPHE discharge permit, which was
Appendix'S? ‘

A Yes.

Q - You referred to the de?éiopment of TR-15
and then later TR-26. Could you briefly descxibe
what TR-15 is. | |

A The release into the Rite Seco occurred
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found, there was a temporary solution which relied

‘allowed to operate.

flong—term remediabtion process that was to be

N ,
implement at that time.

through some seeps along the river, along the
stream. Once that was identified and regulatory
agencies became aware of it; sdmething had:te be
done to ﬁake care of it. That, ultimately, is why
the cease and desist order was issued and so¢ on.

TR-15, as I recall, was the first effort
to identify the methanism that created the leak;
and that describeé the geology and so on that
we;ve discussed_here with the green clay laver;
and i1t alsc described the monitoring programs that
would be put in place.

TR-26 addressed the remediation of the
proﬁess, the long-term remediation of the process.
TR-26 explains -~ I think there was a two-phase
process that they envisioned in TR-26. The first

phase of that was, before a permanent sclution was

upon enhanced evaporation; and that was like a

two-year period that that was supposed to be
And then subsaqqent to that, there was a

designed; In TR-26, I believe that that was a

passive biclogical system that they were hoping to
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fruition, the health department, I‘think, ramained

‘accoﬂplish.

degree possible. That was one of the reasons that

TR, to try and maintain as much of the water in

Before that implementation came, to

poncérned about the continuing releases; and

they —-- and Battle Mountain-bxought in a treatment
plant, I think a temporary treatment plant, RO
plant, te treat and process and, ultimately;
designed a full-scale RO plant, the plant that we
see out there today, which iélused as the
remediatioﬁ solution, as qppbsed to'the passive
biclogical treatment procéss that was initially
envisioned in TR-26. But that's kind of a

rackground of what TR-26 and TR-15 tried to

0 Did TR~56 address attempting to
reintroduce the West Pit waters on a treated basis
back to the stream?

A " Yes.

Q . And in what cﬁntext? Was that a policy

matter?

A -As I'recall, the thought there was to put

the water back into the stream to the highest
the passive precess was favored in the orxriginal

the stream or to return as much of the treated
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"in place over the West Pit itself.

memo, later in 2009, as I recall, from their

water to the stream as was possible.

0 Okay. Do vou.have any knowledge as to
whether, during that period of time after the
s#ill was discovered coming out of the West Pit-
intorthe str¥eam and prior torthe final completion
of the permanent RO facility, waters were
transported over tﬁ'the Lined Tailings Facility?

R There were -- there was a memo, as I
recall, from DRMS orlfrom MiRB at‘that‘timé which
allowed them to truck water to the Lined Téilings
Facility in the event that water levels were
rising and they didn't have the ability to control

it threough the evaporation systems that they had
Subseguent to that, there was another

engineers requesfing construction of a pipeline
that would lead to the Lined Tailings Facility,
and it requested the use of that pipeline strictly
on a backup basis. But, again, that was a Safety
overflow suchrthat, if they were not able to
handle the guantities of water in the pit to keep
the elevatiecns at the point necessary to pr?vent
overfiow info the Rito Seco, tﬁen at least they

had a2 means, a safe means, of pumping it down
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the treatment plant was built. It was really not

in anyone's interest toc see the water level rise

evaporation systems that were in the West Pit, at

temporarily.

S50 there was mechanisms in place,
basiéally'safety or backup mechanisms. And I
don't know how much water was trucked over*there,
if water ﬁas, in fact, trucked over there or run
through that pipeline in that period.

] Was this more or'less a safety valve
while the Water Treatment facility was being
built?

A Yes. ‘This was kind of a safety valve

during what was Phase I, as I talked about, before

and again contaminate the stream.. So, if it

physically couldn't be dissipated through the

leasﬁ this was a safety mechanism that could be
uéed to.prevent renewal of contamination. |

Q It is my understanding that you're
talking about the history of. the Lined Tailings
Facillty to take West Pit waters prior to

completing the permanent Water Treatment Facility?

A Yes.
G ~ Ckay.
A This was in, I think, the 18392 time
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0 (By Mr. McClure) Can you tell mé about
the =-- can you tell me, in yvour view, if there was
any —-- well, strike that.

Let's 'go to the lysimeters. Can you tell
me what was the lysimeters_Fw the use of the

‘lysimeters in the context of the first case,

frame; and the treatment facility was completed
later on in 2002 or '03.

Q Were‘you involved in the 99 CW 57 case?

I think vou already testified that you were.
‘A Yes,

Q._ Did that incorporate any of these or
attempt to implement any of the TR~26 provisions
from your sfandpoinf?

MR, WITWER: I object. <Calls for a legal
conclusion.

THE COURT: I'm going to sustain that

cbiection.

89 CW 327

A - The lysimeters Qere-designed tc be part
of the contaminate identification from‘the ~-- if
there was a release from the ponds, pérticularly
the collection ponds down below the main tailingsl
facility. |

G Was that part of a stipulation with
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‘family at that point in time, to what is now

-those lysimeters?

Dos Hermanos Ranches in 89 CW 327
2 Yes, it was.
@  And that was, more or less, & protection

measure for the owners, which was the Williamson

referred to as the Salazar Ranch?

MR. WITWER: Objection. Calls for a
legal conclusion.

THE CbURT: Sﬁstained.'

0 - (By Mr. McClure) What was the purpose of

MR. WITWER: Same objection.
THE COURT: Overruled.
A The purpose of those lysimeters was to

provide some points which ceontamination, 1f it

existed in the vadose zone -- the vadose zone
being the unsaturated zone -- could be identified.
Lysimeters are -- maybe I should explain what a

iysimeter'is.

Q 'Would you‘pleése do thatl

A Water in the vadose zone, in the
unsaturated zone that is, migrates,verticaiiy
downward thxough the gnsaturated méterials; and so
if you'put a monitoring well in, there will be no

water level in there because there's no
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"made out of porcelain. And it's designed so that

zone, it will suck a sample in. And that sample

.surface. So that gives us some means of trying to

determine if there is flow of contaminates through

saturation.

But a lysimeter is a porous cup that is

you can put a vacuum on that cup; and if there is
water migrating even in an unsaturated state

through the unsaturated zone, through the vadose

can be extracted through tubing that goes to the

the unsaturated zone.

Q éo.one would take a water =-- take
whatevér water sampie is found in the lysimetér
and take it out in some fashion through a suction
cup, and that would be tﬁen tested at a later
time. Is that the concept behind this?

A Yeah. Yeah. The way that it's removed
is a little different ihan that, but éssentially,
it‘givés us a means of coileﬁting'a water sample
in that zone.

Q. And there were lysimeters then placed
below fhejcollection pond?

A Yes .

Q Okay. At various locations. Are you

aware that”it's reported that there-has,been no
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since they were installed over 20 years?

1 sample obtained from those? There's three

different locations -- excuse me. Are there three

"fluids -- clean, contaminated or otherwise -—--

water samples found in those lysimeters for -

lA Yes.
Q VOkay. And the reporting on that is done
by Battle Mcuntain personnel; ié that correct?
A Yes.
Q -uokay. What -- 1is there any significance,

from your standpoint, that there has been no

different. lodations for those lysimeters?

8 I believe that's correct, yes.

0 At different dgpths are those lysiﬁeters
installed? |

A Yes. I think they're 25 to 50 feet,
somewhe:e in that neighberhood.

Q Isrthere'g significance, from your
sfandpoint,'that there has never been any water or
fluid found in that porcelain cup at any of those
lysimeters for a 20~plus;year pericd of time?

A I find that somewhat remarkable,. ves. I

mean, I would expect that we would find sone

which would have been collected in those zones as

different water fronts from seasonal melting an@
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going teo overrule. He's an expert. He's g¢giving

rain and precipitatibn events migrated down
through the unsétuiated zone; but apparently,
these lysimeters were not able to pick that up.
g Are you aware of other conditions in very
dry climates, desert climaﬁes, where they have
been able.to receive a samplé for testing
purposes?
- I have read studies where they have, fes.
1 haven‘t‘myself paiticipated in them; but I
certainlyrhave read stﬁdies, even in-the Sahara
Deserg; Qhere they have secured samples.
MR, WITWER: Cbjecticon, hearsay.
THE WITNESS: This is based on -- I'm
SOrry. |

THE COURT: -~ You don't get to argue. I'm

his bpini§n5

Q (By Mr. Mcclure)- Go ahead, please}

A I‘ﬁ sorry. Based upon technical
documents that I have reviewed as part of my work
on a variety of pfojecfs,‘cértainly, there 1is aﬁ
institute —-- 1 believe it's in Arizona somewhere
around Tucson -- that specificéliy studies desert
hydrology; and theyruse these lysimeters in very

dry situations and are able to identify fluids and
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extract fluids from very dry situations,

ocbserved, can render the usefulness of the

Q . These lysimeters are buried now under the

ground below the collection pond?

A Yes.
Q S0 one really can’'t stick your head under
the ground and know what's going on. You would

almost have to dig them up?

A It may be a maintenance issue with salts
precipitating in the po;celain - in’the pocres of
the porcelain cups thatrprevent water from
reaching them. It may have been a construction
pxobleﬁlo;iginaliy when they were set.

It depends on the kind of drilling rig
that they were set with. If the drilling rig
created mud slime on the side of the heole before
the porcelain cups were set in there{-that mud
slime éan prevent the water from getting to the
cup evenlif tﬁere‘s,a suction in the cup.

So there'é a number of maintenance and

construction issues which, if not properly

lysimeter -~ or render it useless.
MR. MCCLURE: Yocur Honor, at this time,
we would like to enter into evidence two exhibits,

the Cease and Desist Order, and the second is the
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and F, which are your tabs'S and 67

you're still under oath. And, Mr. McClure, you

Colorado Department of Health Discharge Permit.
I'1l give you those numbers. Those are E, and the
discharge permiit 1is F. It's E and F. Excuse me.

THE COURT: So you're asking to admit E

MR. MCCLURE: That's correct.

THE COURT: -Mr. Witwer, do you have any
objection to my admitting those exhibits?

MR; WI%WER: Subject to our continuing
conditional relevance concerns, Your Honor, ﬁo
ocbjection.

THE COURT: E aﬁd F will be admitted.

(Objectors' Exhibit CC-E, Cease and
Desist Oraer;and cec-F, Di?chakgé Permit, were
received into-eﬁ#dence.} |

THE CQURT: It's about noon, so we'lll
take cur lunch bréak; and I will ask that we
resume at 1:15; and wé'll be in recess.

{Lunch recess was taken at 11:57 a.m.)

AFTERNOON SESSION, WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 12, 2012

{The court reconvened at 1:17 p.m., and

the foliowing proceedings were had:)

THE COURT: Mr. Mefford, I'll remind you

may. continue your examination ¢of Mr. Mefford.
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'BY MR. MCCLURE:

that?

I understand your guestion.

,Faciliﬁy?

MR. MCCLURE: Thank ycu} Your Honoi.

DIRECT EXAMINATION. CONT'D

0 Mr. Mefford, yéﬁ had previously testified
concerning the -- what you understocod to be the
water management practices of taking West Pit
waters to the Lined Tailings Facility during that
2003 tb 2010 time period er that eight-vear time

period. Do you recall your testimony concerning

A I believe we talked about the memos from
DRMS that allowed that there would be some

trucking back in the 1999 period. I'm not sure if

Q Let me rephrase the guestion. Just in
termé of the accounting information that waé
testified to this last day and a half,

Mr. Madrid's tftestimony concefning the practices
which existed in 2003 teo 2019, did you hear any of
thét testimony concerning all of that West Pit

water being treated through the Water Treatment

A Yes, I did.
Q  pid you, likewise, hear that during that

eight-year period, none of the water that was -
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taken from the West Pit went to the Lined Tailings
Facility but for the brine? |

A Yes. |

o We consider the brinerseparately as
that's a. by-product from the Water Treatment
Facility? |

A Yes.

Q  Then did you hear the test?mcny that in
2011 there was more than 150 acre-feet of water
taken over to the Lined Tailings Facility, put in
a pohd, pumped out o©of that pend, and used’in a -
center pivét to grow a canola crop?

A Yes.

Q Okay. And did you hear that in 2012
there, likewise, were more than 150 acre-feet of
water taken to ﬁhe Lined Tailings Facility, put in
the pond, pumped ogt of the pond, and then used
for purposes of forcea evaporation through the
sprinklers?

A Evaporated through ﬁhe‘sprinklers,.yes,
or‘attempted to be evaporated fhrough-the
sprinklers, yes.

Q Yes. Do ycu have an opinion as to
whether or nct that inéreaées the risk concerning

water management practices in the Lined Tailings
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~the West Pit, as opposed to just taking brine?

period?

‘going to object because we're talking again about

Facility?

A - You mean the concept of taking water from

Q Taking water from the West Pit and as
opposed to treating it in a Water Treatment
Facility, but taking it over to the Lined Tailings

Facility as existed during the 2011 and 2012 time

A ‘ Yes.

MR. WITWER: Your Honor, I'm sorry. I'm

risk, risk to the facility, risk to the integrity
of the facility. This witness is not gqualified to
render an opinion about that.

THE COQURT: Thank you, Mr., Witwer.
Overruled. He may answer the question.

“A Thére certainly is, as in any kind of
strucﬁure like that, probably some safé level,
some stage at‘which water‘caﬁ be stqfed safely.

We don't know what that is in this facility.

So, conseguently, the more water that we
put into it an@‘the more water that's stered in it
at any gi%en time would incréase the risk, not
knowing wﬁat that'safe level is.

0 (By Mzr. McClure) And, 1f that continued
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were taken from the West Pit directly tec the Lined

in the future where 150 acre~feet or more per vyvear

Tailings Facility, would that impact yvour decision
in any manner?
MR. WITWER: Same objection, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Noted and overrﬁled.

A If, based upon the water balance, there
was an accrual of water so that there was an
increase in the‘quantity of water stored in that
facility from yearcr tblyear, because the facility
was 1lncapable through evaporation and
evapotranspiration of dissipating those gquantities
of water, then thatlwould increase the risk of
feaching whatever-the safe level would be in
there, even though we doﬁ't know,what‘that safe
levéi is. So it would increase the risk, yes,
sir.

Q | (By Mr. McClure) . ;s-there'any concern
from your standpointlthéf the practice'that
existed in 2011 and 2012 changed from the pridr
practice that existed from 2003 to 2008 where all
that Lined Tailings Facility water was treated at .
the Water Treatment Facility but for the brine?

A - Yes. Certainly is a substantial change

in the practice.




03{15:
$3:15:
03:15:
03:15:
03:15:
03:15:
03:15:
03:15:
03:16:
03:16:
03:16:
03:16:
03;16:
03:16:
03:16:
03:186:
03:16:
03:16:

G3:16:

03{16;
65:36:
03:16:
03:16:

G3:l6:

10

21

34

is

42

47

587

59

02

a5

10

11

15

20

23

26

31

34

57

63:16:41

45

47

48

51

54

10

1y

12
13
14
15
18
17
18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

68

are locations for the wells identified, and

Q And what wells are identified on that
rﬁaﬁj

A The San Luis Well, one of the town
wells -- actually, both of the town wells. Those

O Let me hand you Exhibit No. £C=1 and. ask

you if you can identify that.

THE COURT: You have letters.

MR. MCCLERE: It's going to be tab No. 5.
I'm not reading that very well. It is CC~I.

THé COURT: Thank fou.

THE WITNESS: I have tab No. 9,
Exhibit CC-1I, ves. |

Q {By Mr. MecClure) And can you identify
that document? Ié that a document that you
prepared?

A ‘This is an éir.photo of the vicinity of
the mine and the Salazar_Ranch. The title is
"Wells Down Gradient of'Battle'Mountain Rescurces
Tailings Pond." There is an insert in the lower
right-hand cornercr thaf shows topography as well,

On the air photo map, there is location -- there

there's also some arrows which show the directions

of the surface drainages.

are the permit No. 11606~F and 23234-F. The
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Salizar Well permit No. 215914 [sic], I believe.
It's a little difficult to read on the air photo.
One .of the other Salizar wells or permit
No. 19564=-RF, and the third Salizar Weil_permit
No. 21589;F.- Again, that éne is a little bit
difficﬁlt to read on this small version. I
believe that's the éoxrect number.

Q Approximately ig the middle ofAthat map

does it depict the Lined Tailings Facility?

A ‘ Yes.

Q Andrcan_you see a pond on that that’®s in
black? |

A Yes.

Q. " And that's around the white area?

& Yeé.

0 Okay. And the town well that you've
identified -- youive identified”a couple of them.

Was one of those town wells mentioned in the

89 CW 32 decree?

A Yes.

Q Which one was that, sir? -

A - I probébly_should pull that decree éut to
get the right one. If I could reference that

decree, I could be more speéific than that. One

of those is mentioned. One of those two wells
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"gertainly 1s mentioned in that decree. I just

taken in -- by Mr. Witwer in this case on --
excuse me. Let me back up here a minute. Can I
refer you to Exhibit 27, AA. If you could take a

want to make sure we have the right permit number
S0 we have it on the‘record.

0 If you're sure that one of the two 1s the
town wellrthat's in the décree, I think that wi;l
suffice for right now. |

Do you recall having your deposition

moment and take a lock at that.
THE COUR&: Tab 27.
MR, MCCLURE: ,Tab 27, Exhisit Ab.
THE'COURT: That's all right. I just
wanted to make sure I had.it right. Thanks. -
A If I can find it in the corréct book
here, jes.
| Q (By Mr. McClure) If I could hand you 27,
AR, and ask you, Is that a judgment and decree
a&ﬁudicatiné a well in W-142, well No. 1 feor the
San Luis Valley —w‘excuse‘me, San Luis Water and

Sanitation District?

© A Yes, it is.
0 And let me hand you Exhibit No. 25 --
excuse me -- yeah, 25, please, It is tab'ZS,
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question concerning whether or not the tailings

Exhibit No. Y. I apologize for the confusion.

Tab 25, Exhibit No. Y.

A I don't know if I've got this. I've got

tab 25, Exhibit CC-Y.

o If you could go te tab 25, pleése.
a I have that.
Q Is that a separate well adjudicated in

Case W-2336, well No. 1, in favor of the San Luis

Water and Sanitation District?

A Yes.

Q And are those wells depicted upon your
map?

A . Yes. Those are the wells depicted on the
map. |

Q If I may refer you to your deposition

that was taken §n Qctober 23, 2012, that was téken“

in this action by Mr. Witwer, and ask you 1f you

recall a series of queétiqns that Mr. Witwer posed

to you starting with page 166 of that deposit}on.
A Okavy. :

Q And going to line 14, he asked you a

pond was relevant to the Court’s injury analysis
for purposes of the change case or .the

augmentation plan amendment.
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0f the matter asserted; aznd it's not proper unless

And vyour answer was, "I believé it igz?™

MR. WITWER: Objection, Your Honor,
hearsay. ‘

THE COURT: I'ﬁ a little‘confused. Why
are you asking the guestion using the &eposition
instead of just asking him the ﬁuestion.

MR. MCCLURE: That's faiz enough. What
I'm trying to do is review some of his deposition
testimony‘that was given at that time, and ask him_
if there's any clarification to that.

THE COQURT: Ckay.

MR. WITWER: Your Honor, it's not proper

to offer an out-of-court statement for the truth

and until somebody has bezen impeached to start
offering rehabilitative testimony.

MR. MCCLURE: I think it's appropriate to|
go ahead and ask him if he needs to clarify
an&thing concerning what he.had testified to

before,

MR; WITWER: YourAHonor, he was under_
cath -- I'm sor%ylr |
| THE COURT: Let's let Mr. McClure finish,
and then I'll hear what you haQe td say.

MR. MCCLURE: There's adequate time for
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for this witness to review all the lines in his

deposition and make corrections and sign the

cross~examination.

MR. WITWER: There was also adequate itime

correctionjpages, agz every deponént has the
opportunity to de; and that was not done in this
case.

THE COURT: I'm going to lef Mr. MéClure
ask his qﬁestions. And, Mr. Witwer, you can bring
out the fact to me that he didn't correct his
deposition, and yocu can bring that out in your
guestioning.

It sounds like it's just a matter of
who's gding to go first with these issues from
this deposition; and we don't have a jury here,. so
I don't really think it matters a great deal. So
go ahead, Mr. McClure. | .

MR. WITWER: Thank vou.

@  (By Mr. McClure) In that, it Qas
concerning your Opinion No. 5 and also a related
énalysis. Do you redall your testimony concerning
that:you were not aware of the storage volume in
the Lined Tailings Fac¢ility and that you indicatéd‘
that-it was noﬁ a viable storage faqiiity? And

I'm geoing over to the top of page 107,
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waters -- in the event that there was a

substantial failure of the facility, a gross

‘release, that water would follow the topography

A Eﬁcuse'me, yés‘

Q Did you -- in answering that question,
vou also indicated thét, undér a erét case
scenario, i1f there was a gross.failure of the
faéility that was completely full of water, thatl
flows could conceptually reach the Rito Secc. Do
you recall that testimony?

A Yes.

Q Do yoﬁ have an opinion about that

currently, whether in the event that there is

failure of the facility, and it was completély
full of wéter, whether or not those waters could
reach the Rito Seco?

A Well, in the event that there was a

failure of the structure and large surface water

downgradient and, as we follow that, down through
the low canyon and through the alluﬁial fan that
exists at the mouth of thét canyon, then to the
Rito Sgco. So I think that's still correct.

I think I talked.about,‘also, there's a
littlé.mm-drainage structures and roads right at

the mouth of that canyon which.could‘redirect some
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of that water c¢r maybe all of that water, if it
was not that big a failure, to the south instead .
of directly over to the Ritec Seco; but;ﬁcertainiy,
if enodgh water came down thréugh there, it would
follow tﬁe direct topography across to the Rito
Seco. |
0 ng concerning the Exhibit No. CC-1 --
unfortunately, we don't have a blown-up version of|
ihat; but maybe you could just explain;'if there
was a s#bstantial release of waters out of that
Lined Tailings Facility, how that would move aﬁd
what diréction, aé you'vwve demonstrated on CC-1.
THE COURT: You mean CC-12
MR. MCCLURE: I'm sorry. CC-I. It looks
like a one from here every time I loock at it, but
it*slnof right. '
THE WITNESS: Are.ycu talking about a
surface water release? |
Q {By Mr. McClure) Correct, ves.
A Surface water release would follow thé
fopography,'as I indicated. The topﬁgraphyrfv
' 'MR. WITWER: Objection, Your Honor. This
witness has not been Qualified as an expert in |

surface water hydrology.

THE COURT: Mr. McClure, do you want to
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indicated that he has expertise in surface wéter;

addreSS'that?

MR. MCCLURE: Yes he has. He has

and it's connected to, generally, the groundwater
issues; but he does have experience in surface
water. | |

MR. WITWER: He was qualified as an
expert in groundwater hyvdrology, geology, water
quality, water management, and grouﬁd and surface
water interaction.

THE COURT: Yeah. That was what vyou
asked him‘to be gualified as, Mr. McClure.

Q‘ (By Mr. MﬁCiure) Concerning the path bf
release, as it couldlimpact the groundwater and‘
the groundwatér underneath the Salazér Ranch or
anythiﬁg surrounding that, 1in the event that there
is a major release from the Lined Tailings |
Facility, could that reach the groundwater in any
0f those locatiens? - |

:A The -—- this is really a matter of surfacel
water-groundwater interaétion; and it is important
to recognize and understand where the surface
water would flow. It's just a matter of water
flows downhili. This is not rocket science'in

terms of the surface water aspects here.
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seep into the aguifer systems. So it's a matter

function of both surface water, groundwater. It's

and the interaction of those two.

the gradient on the water table, underlying water

But water flowing down the drainage, as
you can see on-this map up here, reaches the mouth

of the caenyvon; and at that time, it will begin to

of, not only surface flow down the canyon, and
some of the agquifer that exists.in the bottom of
this canyon will be saturated; but as the main
body of fhe water reaches the mouth of the‘canyen,
it will begin te seep into the aquifer as well.

So the aquifer could be contaminated.here
by virtue of ssepage into it. You know, we know
that these are losing streams and ditches through
here. So we know that the aquifer absorbs water

and takes water throughout that reach. So it's a
a function of both surface water and groundwateﬁ

So, that being said, if we have surface
water releasé and it comes down the canyoen and

then it seeps into the groundwater system, then

table, will take over and determine the rate and

direction of flow of the groundwater -- or of the

contaminants.

0 In the event that the wells that are
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definition.

pumpiﬁg at the east;pivot and west pivot -- wells
that are located there are, in fact, pumpiné,
could that cause a movement of groundwater toward
thése wells? 7

A Certaihly. If those are 'punmping an&
theﬁe iz a cone of depression developed around
those wells, those will Ee &'lqcal depression
which impacts the éontours_in the water table and
creates a gradient towardlthose wells.

The water table mapping through this
whole region is kind ¢f marginal. The state
engineer has done some of it as part of their
Decision Support System Wwork, but the water table

mapping through here doesn't really have a lot of

But, certainly, the mechanism that's
important to recognize is that the‘water is going
to come down on the surface from the surface
release; it's going to seep vertically down into
the aquifer where it overlies the aliu#ium. It's
golng tec seep vertically down through the alluvium
in the unsaturated z@ne; and once it reaches the
ione of saturation, it's going to‘be the gradient
on the groundwater table‘that‘s goingrto determire

the rate and direction of flow in that system.
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Just dlscussed but we know that the groundwater

So those are the parameters that you need
to unaerstand with a fairly high degree of |
specificity to try and track where a pigme might
go, contaminate plume might go.

Q 'And based upon yoﬁr experience and
expertise in groundwater, integration of surface
water and groundwatex, do you have an opinion with
a reasonablé degree of probability if the waters
underlying the Salazar Ranch in that aguifer could
be impgcted by é major release? | |

A It's certaiﬁly probable. Again, it's

cozng to be a functicn of the mechanisms that we

generally in this reach runs to thé south and to
the west. It kind of péréllels the surface
drainages in that manner to some degree.

Bﬁt, in general, what I'm saying is we
know that the general direction of groundwater
flow is. going to be from the recharge areas, which
exist up 1in the mountains down to the south and
down to the west. So a plume is going to go
through there i1if thexe's a contaﬁinate plume
generated. |

Exactly where that plume goes is golng to

be a functlon of the conflguratlon of the
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‘incorzectly located and weould not be shown as

the application, which it is net.

illustrating testimony that was neither disclosed

groundwater table. The groundwater table may be
impacted. The-configurétion of the groundwater
takle may be ilmpacted by whether cr not tﬂose
wells are puﬁping at any given time.

MR. MCCLURE: We would offer into
evidence CC-I.

THE COURT: Thank you, Mr. McClure.
Mr., Witwer, any objection to my admitting CC .
Exhibit I? -

MR. WITWER: Several objections,
Your Honor.‘ I guess a reiatively minor objection:
Salizér Well 21589, I believe it is, the well
that's kind of in the center of the drawing, has
been withdrawn from this case. That's not an
augmentation supply ﬁhat's claimed in this'case.

And we further believe that that well has been
located anywhere on the Salazar Ranch were it in
"1 guess, secondariiy, this exhibit, whichj
was not disclosed as part of the expert report of
the witness, nor was it disclosed prior to the

deposition that was taken in this case, is now

in the report nor disclosed during the deposition,
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- paraphrase of my quesﬁion beginning on line 2 of

"quoted from lines 7 through 15 of page 108 of his

wherein Mr. Mefford sim@ly said that he was
referring to potential effects of contamination of
groundwater-surface water from a majorx reieaée.

He said he agreed that those potential
effects doﬁft have anything to do with the guality
of the replacement or augmentation water supplies
in this augmentation plan. They don't impact the
water guality that's being used. The water
guality that's being used for augmentation is
separate from the water guality that's in the
tailings pond. |

‘ “And then went on to say, conceivably, if
there were a fallure or release from that pond,
surface water or groundwater, ultimately, some of
that water might make it back, way back, to the
Dos Hermanos wells or the Saiézar wells, as they
are celled here. We don't know that. |

You just heard testimony =--

MR. MCCLURE: What page are you on?

MR. WITWER: I apologize. I'm on

page 108, and I was reading from =-=- I guess a
that page through line 15. His answer being

deposition.
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. any supplementation. And that's a serious matter

Vbe admitted has to do with the fzct that none of .

And we've now heard the word "likely™

snuck into that opinion without notice, without

under Rule 37, and we move tHat that cpinion be
stricken and this heretofore undisclosed exhibit
illustrating a further opinion be furthexr

stricken.

The final reason this exhibit ought not

the opposers in this caée.own any interest in the
town of San Luis'wells, which are, as noﬁed by
Mr. McClure, as yet unofferéd well decrees, are
held by the Sag Luis Water and Sanitation -
District, whiph is not a party to this case.

And under the Shirola case, which I'11 be
glad to tender to counsel and te the Court,
S-H-I-R-0-L-A, direct quote from that case —-
that's 937 P.2d 7392 at page 747 ~=- "In a watex
adjudication inveolving a’piopbééd.plan for
augmentétion or a change of water right;.any
perscn may object to the ap?lication iﬁseif and
participaté‘in the adjudication bf'holding the
applicant to a gtandard of strict.proof; hoWéver,
for that bbjector to haﬁe standing to assért'

injury to his or her water right, the okjector
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‘must show that he of she has a iegally protected

to water rights decreed to that well.

interest in a vested water right or conditional.
decree. ¥

There has been no such showing in this
case; that the San Luis Water and Sanitation
District is not present‘before the  Court. They're

the only ones who have standing to assert injury

So, for all of those reasons, we‘object
to the admission of Exhibit CC-1; and we further
ask that the brand rnew opinion concerning
iikelihood of contamination of groupdwater on the
Salazar Ranch property be stricken.

THE COURT: Thank you, Mr. Witwer.

Mr. MpClure. |

MR. MCCLURE: We feel that the notice was
givén concerning our position on this matter by
virtue of the deposition that was taken. The
deposition was.taken. He had adequate opportunity
to ask all questions he wanted to of Mr. Mefford
concerning the iséue;lthatlthe issuelconcerning
the impaét on the Salazar Ranch was a métter that
they were certainly aware of. 1f they didn't ask
the guestion at the déposition, that{s up to them;

but it is certainly a matter where there was
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noﬁice giﬁeh.concerning that.

THE COURT: So what I understood
Mxr. Witwerrto be arguing, and please help me, iz I
understand that he said, "I asked him these
gquestions at the deposition and he gave one
answer. Today he's giving a different opinion,
ahd‘nobody supplemented the discovery to tell me
that he's actually come'up with a different
opinian." Se that was what I understood.

| MR. MCCLURE: If I could just read a
little bit more of the depoéition and the
guestioning asked, and this waé on page 107.

IHE COURT: I don't have the deposition,
if anyone caies‘about that.

MR. MCCLURE: No. I ¢can get you =~ 1
guess I have 1t. If you don't mind, I'll read it
into the recqrd and hand it to you if I coﬁld.

THE COURT: That's fine,

MR.-WITWER; We have a cléan copy/

Your Honor, sc¢ that Mr. Mcﬁlure doesn't have to
give up his own. | |
. THE coﬁRT: You have another capy?
MR, WITWER: Yes, Your ﬁonor.
THE COURT: What page are you on?

MR. MCCLURE: I'm on page 108,. and I'm




86

03:42:29 1 reading at 108 to 106&. It is as follows:

03:42:36 2 "QUESTION: Would vou agreé that the
03:42:38 3 effects” -- and this is 108, line 2. “Would you
03:42:42 4 égree thét the effects of contamination of

o§4m44 5 groundwater or surface water that vyvou just

03:42:4% 6] described don't have anything to do with the

03:42:56 7 guality of the replaéement or augmentation water

03:42:59 8 supplies in the augmentation plan?

03:43:00 g1 "ANSWER: That's correct. They don't
03:43:02 10§ impact the water quality -~ the water quality
03:43:04 11 that's being used -- excuse me -- the water that's

03:43:08 12 being'used‘for augmentation is separate from the
0D3:43:12 13} water guality that's in the tailings pond.

03:43:15 14 "Conceivably, if there was a failufe'dr
03:43:17 15 release from that pond, surface water or

03:43:18 186 groundwatér, ultimately, some of that water might
03:43:23 17 make its way back down to the Dos Hermanos or
0&4&2§~18 Salazar wells, as they are called here. We don't
03:43:29 19| know that." |

20 FQUESTION:‘ Underneath Rito Seco?

(03:43:31

03:43:34 21 "In the alluvium underneath the Rito
03:43:37 22 Seco, ves, to the Dos Hermanos wells.

03:43:35 . 23 ’ "QUESTION: I thought...you say that the

03:43:41 24 Dos Hermanos wells are not connected to the

03:43:44 25 surface dralnage system?
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aquifer, not to the surface stream there,

“ANSWER:' That's trﬁe. The water levei,
as I recail in at least one of the Dos Hermanocs
wells{ is, like, 60 feet. But, again, 1f there
was a release 1into the groundwater and a sufface
water release seeped intorthe groundwater, either

way, that 1is likely to make its way to the

"It would‘take -- it would take a
substantial release, ﬁaybela catastrophic failure,
that would havé to be océurring for that Qater to
make it teo the sufface streém."

MR.AWITWER: May I respond, Your Honorxr?

THE COURT: You may.

MR. WITWER: The comment later on, in
response to a different guestion yet again, about
whether theré was a connection between the Dos
Hermanos.wells and the surface stream.sys?em, Was |
that if. there was a, as yet, unproven release, a
Sﬁbstantial_reléase, maybe a éatastrophic failure;
apparently, it's likely that water released from
that would go into the aguifer.  That's as far as
the "likely" comment made.

The guestion - and as you pointed out
yourseif in 'your response br'YOur gquestion to

Mr. McClure ~-_that I have every right and my
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‘water might make its way back down to the Dos

aguifer. It's a big aquifer. The only thing upon

client has & right to relyv on the answer,
beginning at line 7, was that the potential
effects of grﬁundwater or surface water
ccntamiﬁation "don't impact the water quality -~
the water that's being used -- excuse me -~ thé
water that;s being used fromlaugﬁentation is
separate from theawater guality that's in the
tailings pond."

| And then he proceeded to éay -- and this
is not uhdermine& by the final comment =-- "if
there were a failure" -~ "Conceivably, if thexg
were a failure or release'from‘fhat-pond, surface

water or groundwater, ultimately, some of that

Hermanos wellé'or the Salazar wells, as they are .
called here. We don't kﬁow_that." So yvou've got
three qualificétions in one paragraph.

-And the‘next thing,saysf if there was a

catastrophic failure, water would likely go to the

which we are here able to rely is‘this, and now
we're hearing that it's likely to get to the

wells. That's an entirely new fabricateé opinion
post depositioﬁ. |

‘MR. MCCLURE: Judge, it refers to the Dos
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I'm going to allow -- I'm not going to strike the

- him, Mr. Witwer; but vou- -also havelyour expert

Hermanos wells. The Dos Hermanos wélls are the
wells that are part ¢f the augmenfatibn'supply.

| MR. WITWER: Yoﬁ have the text in fronf
of you,'Your Honor. i‘m not goeing to bandy‘words
cver what it says.

THE COURT: To the extent that Exhibit I
refers to a well that's nﬁt part of the
application, that part of the exhibit the Court
certainly‘will completely disrega;d. To the
extent what it refers to wells that belong to the
town of San Luis, who are not parties to this
action in any way, the Court will disregard that
part of the exhibit as well. | |

I think, at this point, there waé'enough
discussion during the déposition; and if*s.been
clear that this is the issue or oné of the major
lssues tﬁe Court was going td be dealing with at

this hearing.l I think there's enough notice that

testimony of Mr. Mefford.

Certainly, not only c¢can you cross—-examine

here to provide any rebuttal testimony that you
desire. And so I am not going to strike his

testimony.
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~Certainly, changing opiniéns goes to what
welght this Court is going to giﬁe to the
testimony. And I will at this time admit
Exhibitrz, except as I've noted; and I'm not going
to consider the wells on there that deoen't have
anything to do with this application or.otﬁer
parties before the Court.

MR. MCCLURE: Your Honor, if we could

make one commént on that. |

THE COURT: You may.

MR. MCCLURE: To the extent that the well
that is referred to in 89'CW 32, which was a well
that is being tested under the watef quality
proviéions submitted by Battle Mountafn in that
case; we think that would be appropriate to
include that well, particularly where they want
to -- Battle Mountain is seeking to iﬁclqde the
terms of 89 CW 32 and 99 CW 57 in this action;

THE COURT: ‘Which well is that? Is that
ﬁhe town well that's fested then? Is that what
you're talking about? '

MR. MCCLURE; Yeah. That is the town
well that 1is tested in 8% CW 32. That is correct.

THE COURT: But which one is that?

MR. MCCLURE: If you can give me a
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foreclese that.

mqﬁent,‘l will try to fiﬁd that well. Thé well is
2236, weil No. 1.

THE COURT: 2236, so that's thé one that
is down there in the far left corner?

MR.'MCCLURE: -Yes. And that is on
8% CW 32 at page 20, and that's the well that
water Samples are taken from.belonging to the
San Luls Water and Sanitation District.

| THE CQURT: Ckavy. Well, I‘ve-admitted

the exhibit, and that's indicéted on there. And
to the extent that you want to make argﬁment aﬁdut
how -- in closing -~ ‘that this testimony and how
it affects that well should make a dlfference to
the Court's ruling, certainly you can do that
since that weil is referred to in that decree.

MR;'WITWER:, Just to clarify.  You're notl
modifying your ruling that they cannot assert
injury to a well tﬁey don't own.

THE COU?T: No. Because I think you're
right. I think that's the law; but since‘it‘s
part of the decree, I mean, there may be some

other argument there; and I'm not going to

MR. WITWER: Understood, Thank you very

much.
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. deposition summary of William Lyle of November 2,

{(Objectozrs’ Exhibit CC-I, Aerial Photo of
Wells Down Gradient of Battle Mountain Resources
Tailing‘Pénd, was received into evidence with
exclusions as outlined by the Court above.)

ER. MCCLURE: We have no furthef
gquestions.

THE COURT: Thank yvou, Mr. McClure.
ﬁr. Lobato, do yow have any gquestions vyou want to
ask Mr. Mefford?

MR. LOBATO: No, I don't.

THE COURT: Mr. Witwer, you may
cross-—examine Mr. Mefford.

MR. MCCLURE: Could I ask Mr. Mefford-one_
other guestion before we get started?r

THE COQURT: You ﬁay, Mr. McClure.

Q (By Mr. Mcciuré) As part of your

investigaetion, did vou have the opportunity to

review the deposition of William Lyle or

201272
A I did, yes.
Q I'm going to hand you that deposition at
pages 127 and 128 and ask if yvou reviewedlthat.
THE COURT: Before you ~-- Mr. McClure,

did you give me a copy of that beyond the
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where the path -of :eleaée of waters from the Lined

original? I*il open the oiigiﬁal-if vou didn't;
and it doesn't matter. I'll open the original.
MR. MCCLURE: Please do. I didn't do
that. We‘dquld i f yourwauld like,
THE COURT: No. NO. No.,

A Yes, T recall reading this.

0 {By Mr. McClure) And you recall in that
depositibn'that Mr. Lyle is the project manager |
from 1997 to 2011 at the Costilla County site?

A At the mine, yes.

Q ﬁid that ~-- anything that he say in that

cpinion, concerning his analysis and study of

Tailingé Faciiity would go. influence you in your
decision? | |
MR. WITWER: Chijection, Your Honor,
mischaracterizes deposition testimdnf as an
analyéis and study.  The full context of the
deposition is quite the opppﬁite. |
| THE COURT: Ail right.
MR. MCCLURE: I1'1ll rephrase the question.
THE COURT: That's fiﬁe.
Q (By Mr. McClure) Would whatever Mr. Bill
Lyle did c¢oncermning his investigation‘concerning

the opinien that ~-- and statement that he rendered
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in that deposition, did that help you in any
manner concerning a -- an aﬁaiysis by somébody
whb's been inyolved in the mine site from 1997 to
2011 as the manager?

A I didn't rely upon his opinion. His
opinion parallels mine.

Q . And what is his opinion?

A His-opinionlis that, in the‘évent of a
breach -~ his answer on line four is "It wouldl
flood down the canyon onto the $an Luis Ranch.".

And then you iédicated; “Thé Salazar

Ranch?"

And he said that's correct -- or "That's
right."

Ané I tﬁiﬁk that's consistent with the
testimony I just gave that, in a large breach,
that's where the water would gc, come down the
canyon andronto‘the Salazar Ranch.

Q ~And that's a breach out of the Lined
Tailings Facility?
A Yes. .

MR. MCCLURE: Thank you. I've got no
further guestions now.

THE CGCURT: Thank vyou, Mr. McClure.

Mr. Witwer, you may cross—examine Mr. Mefford.




